
Democratic Services
Lewis House, Manvers Street, Bath, BA1 1JG
Telephone: (01225) 477000 main switchboard Date: 3 May 2016
Direct Lines - Tel: 01225 395090 E-mail: Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
Web-site - http://www.bathnes.gov.uk

To: The Chairperson and Clerk of each Parish and Town Council in Bath & North East 
Somerset and the Chairpersons of Parish Meetings

Copy to : 
Group Leaders:  
Cabinet Members:  

Chief Executive and other appropriate officers
Press and Public

Dear Member

Parishes Liaison Meeting: Wednesday, 11th May, 2016 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Parishes Liaison Meeting, to be held on 
Wednesday, 11th May, 2016 at 6.30 pm in the Community Space, Keynsham - Market 
Walk, Keynsham.

The agenda is set out overleaf.

Yours sincerely

Sean O'Neill
for Chief Executive

If you need to access this agenda or any of the supporting reports in an alternative 
accessible format please contact Democratic Services or the relevant report author 
whose details are listed at the end of each report.

This Agenda and all accompanying reports are printed on recycled paper

mailto:Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/


NOTES:

1. Inspection of Papers: Any person wishing to inspect minutes, reports, or a list of the 
background papers relating to any item on this Agenda should contact Sean O'Neill who is 
available by telephoning Bath 01225 395090 or by calling at the Guildhall Bath (during 
normal office hours).

2. Public Speaking at Meetings: The Council has a scheme to encourage the public to 
make their views known at meetings. They may make a statement relevant to what the 
meeting has power to do.  They may also present a petition or a deputation on behalf of a 
group.  Advance notice is required not less than two full working days before the meeting 
(this means that for meetings held on Wednesdays notice must be received in Democratic 
Services by 4.30pm the previous Friday) 

The public may also ask a question to which a written answer will be given. Questions 
must be submitted in writing to Democratic Services at least two full working days in 
advance of the meeting (this means that for meetings held on Wednesdays, notice must 
be received in Democratic Services by 4.30pm the previous Friday). If an answer cannot 
be prepared in time for the meeting it will be sent out within five days afterwards. Further 
details of the scheme can be obtained by contacting Sean O'Neill as above.

3. Recording at Meetings:-

The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now allows filming and 
recording by anyone attending a meeting.  This is not within the Council’s control.

Some of our meetings are webcast. At the start of the meeting, the Chair will confirm if all 
or part of the meeting is to be filmed. If you would prefer not to be filmed for the webcast, 
please make yourself known to the camera operators.

To comply with the Data Protection Act 1998, we require the consent of parents or 
guardians before filming children or young people. For more information, please speak to 
the camera operator

The Council will broadcast the images and sound live via the internet 
www.bathnes.gov.uk/webcast An archived recording of the proceedings will also be 
available for viewing after the meeting. The Council may also use the images/sound 
recordings on its social media site or share with other organisations, such as broadcasters.

4. Details of Decisions taken at this meeting can be found in the minutes which will be 
published as soon as possible after the meeting, and also circulated with the agenda for 
the next meeting.  In the meantime details can be obtained by contacting Sean O'Neill as 
above.

Appendices to reports are available for inspection as follows:-

Public Access points - Reception: Civic Centre - Keynsham, Guildhall - Bath, The Hollies 
- Midsomer Norton. Bath Central and Midsomer Norton public libraries.

For Councillors and Officers papers may be inspected via Political Group Research 
Assistants and Group Rooms/Members' Rooms.

5. Attendance Register: Members should sign the Register which will be circulated at the 
meeting.

http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/webcast


6. THE APPENDED SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS ARE IDENTIFIED BY AGENDA ITEM 
NUMBER.

7. Emergency Evacuation Procedure

When the continuous alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building by one of the 
designated exits and proceed to the named assembly point.  The designated exits are 
sign-posted.

Arrangements are in place for the safe evacuation of disabled people.



Parishes Liaison Meeting - Wednesday, 11th May, 2016

at 6.30 pm in the Community Space, Keynsham - Market Walk, Keynsham

A G E N D A

1.  WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS 

2.  EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

The Chair will draw attention to the emergency evacuation procedure as follows:

If the continuous alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building by one of the designated exits 
and proceed to one of the named assembly points. The designated exits are sign-posted. 
Arrangements are in place for the safe evacuation of disabled people. The assembly points 
are: the front and rear of Riverside, Temple Street. 

3.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

4.  URGENT  BUSINESS AS AGREED BY THE CHAIR 

The Chair will announce any items of urgent business accepted since the agenda was 
prepared

5.  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 7 - 12)

6.  LEADER'S REPORT 45 MINS

(a)  Devolution update 

This item will include a presentation by David Trethewey, Divisional Director 
Strategy and Performance. The following link to the West of England 
Devolution Agreement is provided as background information on this item

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/west-of-england-devolution-deal 

(b)  Any other updates from the Leader 

7.  DEMONSTRATION OF "ATRIUM" ONLINE SYSTEM 10 MINS

8.  TRANSPORT AND ENVIRONMENT UPDATE 30 MINS

Martin Shields, Divisional Director, Environmental Services, and colleagues will give a 
presentation.

(a)  A37 Route Review 

Kelvin Packer (Group Manager - Highways & Traffic) and Stefan Chiffers 
(Senior Engineer - Traffic Management) will give a presentation.

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/west-of-england-devolution-deal


(b)  Parish Sweeper Scheme - update 

(c)  Feedback from Highways consultations 

9.  PLANNING UPDATE (Pages 13 - 14) 20 MINS

A briefing note from Mark Reynolds, Group Development Manager, is attached.

A wide range of further information on these and other planning matters relating to 
town and parish council can be found on the web page linked below

http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/services/planning-and-building-control/planning/planning-
advice-and-guidance/parish-and-town-council

(a)  Notice for Parish Clerks from Planning Team when there are problems with 
the website 

(b)  Permitted Development Rights and Certificates of Lawful Use 

(c)  Housing and Planning Bill: B&NES response to consultation on Technical 
Implementation of Planning Changes (Pages 15 - 32)

(d)  "Download all" option - update 

10.  PARISH CLERKS WORKING GROUP (Pages 33 - 36) 5 MINS

A note is attached.

11.  PARISH CHARTER CONSULTATION - VERBAL UPDATE 5 MINS

12.  CONNECTING COMMUNITIES MEETINGS - FOR 
INFORMATION 

Bathavon Forum
22 June, 6pm, St Gregory’s School

Keynsham Area Forum
30th June, 6pm, Fry Club and Conference Centre

Somer Valley Forum
6th July, 6pm, venue tbd

Chew Valley Forum
7th July, 6pm, Chew Valley School

13.  DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS 

Dates of future meetings:

12 October 2016

http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/services/planning-and-building-control/planning/planning-advice-and-guidance/parish-and-town-council
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/services/planning-and-building-control/planning/planning-advice-and-guidance/parish-and-town-council


15 February 2017

Potential future Agenda Item: Survey of War Memorials.

The Committee Administrator for this meeting is Sean O'Neill who can be contacted on 
01225 395090.



Bath and North East Somerset Council

Page 1

PARISHES LIAISON MEETING

Minutes of the Meeting held
Wednesday, 24th February, 2016, 6.30 pm

Bath and North East Somerset Councillors: Ian Gilchrist (Chairman), Anthony Clarke, 
Martin Veal, Michael Evans and Charles Gerrish

Representatives of Parish and Town Councils in Bath and North East Somerset

Also in attendance: Andy Thomas (Group Manager Strategy & Performance) and Andrew 
Pate (Strategic Director, Resources)

23   WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS 

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting.
24   EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

The Democratic Services Officer read out the procedure.
25   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies were received from Cllrs Tim Warren, Liz Richardson, Martin Veale.        
26   URGENT  BUSINESS AS AGREED BY THE CHAIR 

The Chair drew attention to the Parish and Town Councillors reception to be held on 
April 20 in Keynsham. All Parish and Town Councils should already have had 
notification of this date; official invitations will be sent out shortly. 

All Parish and Town Councillors were welcome to attend. It would be helpful if 
Councils sent their own RSVPs detailing numbers expected to attend.

Suggestions from parishes about content to provide focus for the event would be 
welcome.

27   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

These were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.
28   VIDEO IN HONOUR OF PETER DUPPA-MILLER 

The Chair welcomed Peter’s widow, Margaret, to the meeting.

After the showing of the video the meeting showed their appreciation of Peter’s 
service to the community with a round of applause.

Sara Dixon informed the meeting that the first winner of the Peter Duppa Miller 
Lifetime Achievement Award had been Joan Pearce of Combe Down. (Further 
information can be found at:
 http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/latestnews/volunteers-praised-chairman%E2%80%99s-
awards-their-work-bath-and-north-east-somerset.)

Page 7

Agenda Item 5

http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/latestnews/volunteers-praised-chairman%E2%80%99s-awards-their-work-bath-and-north-east-somerset
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/latestnews/volunteers-praised-chairman%E2%80%99s-awards-their-work-bath-and-north-east-somerset


Page 2 of 5

29   UPDATES FROM BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET COUNCIL 

Andy Thomas introduced the briefing note.

Andy said that Catherine Parker in Planning would be willing to take any queries 
from parishes about infrastructure investment.

The meeting noted the updates.
29.1   COUNCIL BUDGET 

Councillor Charles Gerrish, Cabinet Member for Resources and Efficiency made a 
statement to the meeting. He said;

“Last November I attended a number of parish forums and went through the headline 
details of some of the budget proposals. However in the Autumn, although initially 
encouraging, the Chancellor’s statement proved far from the case, and when the 
settlement was announced in December, it showed a reduction in Government 
funding of somewhere in the region of £3.6m on what had been expected. It means 
that the overall shortfall for 2016/17 will be £12m. A lot of that £12m had been 
addressed prior to November, but an extra £3.6m at the last minute on top of that 
was somewhat more than we had hoped. A new management and service review 
will be completed by the Autumn to deliver a further £2.2m of savings, whilst in the 
short term reserves will be utilised until these savings are delivered, the target for 
that being 1st October. Additionally funding has been provided totalling £360k for the 
mayoral referendum. 

Councillor Warren and I visited the minister in London regarding the late change in 
the Government formula that led to the reduction. Transition funding was announced 
for two years. Due to its one-off nature, this extra funding cannot be used to support 
the base budget as it would cause further difficulties in subsequent years. As a result 
£749,000 will be used to provide temporary support for departments this year while 
they adapt to new ways of delivering services and providing contingencies for risk. 

The budget does protect all essential services, children’s centres, maintains 
increased local youth services and environmental services, such as street cleaning 
and maintains the high quality of social care. To summarise, there will be a 2% adult 
social care precept plus a basic Council Tax rise of 1.25%, the first for 5 years, a rise 
that had been postponed with support from Government funding that is now finished. 
This is the smallest rise in the region, and we have also been able to make additional 
funds available for a welfare support fund for those who find the increase in Council 
Tax this year rather challenging. 

£5m of savings have been achieved through increases in efficiency in service 
provision. There is £3m from new sources of income and £1m from more up-to-date 
calculations on the cost of growth and £1.4m from underspends and better than 
planned Heritage incomes, which has been built into the figures. I would like to 
highlight the following specific projects in parishes:

 There will be support for a further year to adult advice and information 
centres before the Care Commission work leads to a total reformation.

Page 8



Page 3 of 5

 £200,000 towards the Bath Enterprise Area and the new Enterprise Zone 
in the Somer Valley

 An additional £0.5m for highways and infrastructure maintenance

 £3m on LED street lighting, a further investment which will lead to a 
reduction in the cost of street lighting and further savings on energy use

 Funds for bin replacement

 £3.275 million towards an increase in the provision of affordable housing. 

 Substantial funds for investment in both Bath Quays and the new property 
company that has just been announced. This is designed to generate 
income either through additional business rates that the Bath Quays will 
generate or through rental income of the property company. 

 Specific investment in schools at St Mary’s and Writhlington, Farmborough 
Primary and Saltford Primary and further funding towards Peasedown 
Primary and Ubley Primary

 £100,000 for highways structures between Belluton Narrows and Pensford 
in the coming year.  This might cause traffic difficulties for those who use 
that route, and I am advised that the detour for that route is substantial, but 
local people can half the length of the official detour. 

 Drainage funding for Chew Magna, Upper Swainswick and a further phase 
in West Harptree

 Carriageway works on the A39 at Corston and Charlcombe Lane and a 
new road at Publow Lane in Pensford

 Surface dressing at Paulton Road in Hallowtrow and Stockwood Lane in 
Keynsham

 Improvements to the Bannerdown Road footpath, the Hallatrow 
roundabout and Harptree Cemetery

That’s just an illustration of the projects spread throughout the parishes in North East 
Somerset. All details are listed in the documents about the budget proposals on the 
Council’s website.”

29.2   ARRANGEMENTS FOR THE REFERENDUM ON A DIRECTLY-ELECTED MAYOR 
FOR BATH & NORTH EAST SOMERSET 

The Meeting noted the arrangements for the referendum.
30   BRIEFING REQUESTED BY PARISHES: INFRASTRUCTURE AND 

DEVELOPMENT IN BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET 

The Meeting noted the briefing.

Page 9



Page 4 of 5

31   SPECIFIC ISSUES RAISED BY PARISHES FOR RESOLUTION 

Andy Thomas introduced this item. He drew attention to the working group of Parish 
Clerks, which it was proposed would work on the specific issues raised by ALCA 
under the Parish Charter.

Nick Stevens of Freshford asked whether the working group would also review the 
Parish Charter itself. He believed Parish Councillors should also be involved. All 
parishes had been sent a questionnaire about the Charter in 2009 and Freshford had 
submitted a very detailed response. Would the responses of parishes in 2009 be 
considered in the review? Andy Thomas clarified that reference to the clerks working 
group was due to the nature of the specific issues being raised under the Parish 
Charter. He agreed that there was an opportunity to review and update the Parish 
Charter and that Parish Liaison should be involved in this.

Nick Stevens referred to the provision of the Charter that B&NES would allow not 
less than 21 days for consultation with parishes and said that this timescale would 
often deny parish councils the opportunity to consider an issue at a formal meeting. 
A longer consultation period would be better for parishes.

Geoff Davies, Parish Clerk of South Stoke, suggested that now the sending of paper 
plans to parishes had been discontinued, a zip file containing all the documents 
relating to a planning application should be available from the B&NES website, as 
was the case in Wiltshire. Parishes generally did not have internet access in their 
halls, so if a presentation on an application was to be given at a parish meeting it 
was necessary to download every document relating to the application separately 
beforehand. The zip file should also be given a meaningful name, not just a number. 
He said that he had raised this with a planning officer at a previous meeting. Andy 
Thomas replied that he understood that a software change would be required before 
this could be implemented. He had not previously been aware of the issue about file 
names. Geoff Davies said that he could not see that a software change would be 
required. Martin Robinson, Chairman of Dunkerton and Tunley PC, was concerned 
that some drawings accompanying planning applications could not be viewed online 
because of their poor quality. He suggested that there needed to be basic quality 
standards for these drawings.

A delegate said that with slow broadband speeds it was difficult to examine plans, 
and it was impossible to see them properly on tablets. He suggested that either 
appropriate technology should be provided to parishes or paper plans should 
continue to be sent to until these problems were resolved. Andy Thomas said there 
was help to assist parishes with IT. Planning had said that they would continue to 
provide paper plans for major applications. Andrew Pate said that a paperless 
approach had huge advantages and suggested that the way forward was to identify 
the gaps that needed to be filled to make technology work for parishes.

A delegate said that he felt the response on road diversions was a bit glib. Road 
closures could impact severely on parishes. Diversions could add many miles to 
journeys. Very short notice had been given of the work at the Viaduct.  Councillor 
Tony Clarke said that he had already given a public apology for what had happened 
in relation to the Viaduct and he would give it again. It was unacceptable that notice 
had only been issued on 23rd December. This was planned work, and there was no 
reason not to have given a month’s notice. A review of the management of road 

Page 10



Page 5 of 5

works had been launched and an attempt would be made to give proper notice in 
future. Instead of “Traffic Management” a specific officer would be named on notices. 
Work was being done on producing timelines for future highways work.

A delegate said that parishes have appreciated more detail than had been given in 
the briefing note. It was disappointing that no officers from Planning, were present to 
respond to questions from parish representatives. Andrew Pate suggested that this 
meeting was possibly not the best forum to discuss detailed issues relating to 
Highways and Planning, for example. Cllr Martin Veal suggested the Parish Clerks’ 
working group might be an appropriate forum; the Clerks could then report back to 
their parishes on issues discussed by the group. Chris Clemence of Hinton 
Charterhouse said that she was not sure that all Clerks were aware of the working 
group. Councillor Veal said that he would ensure that information was circulated to 
Clerks on this. Parishes could also submit issues to the working group.

32   FOR INFORMATION: MEETINGS OF CONNECTING COMMUNITIES FORUMS 

The dates were noted.
33   DATES OF FUTURE PARISH LIAISON MEETINGS 

It was noted that future dates of meetings were:

11 May 2016

12 Oct 2016

15 Feb 2017

The meeting ended at 7.24 pm

Chair(person)

Date Confirmed and Signed

Prepared by Democratic Services

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Parishes Liaison 11th May 2016

Briefing from Mark Reynolds, Group Manager- Development 
Management

(a)  NOTICE FOR PARISH CLERKS FROM PLANNING TEAM WHEN THERE 
ARE PROBLEMS WITH THE WEBSITE 

The Planning team always puts a warning on the website if there is going to 
be planned “down time” for a few hours. For ‘unplanned’, temporary 
downtime, the aim is to fix this as quickly as possible. Planning officers are 
aware immediately if the system goes down during working hours and IT are 
asked to fix it immediately. 

(b)  PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT ORDERS AND CERTIFICATES OF LAWFUL 
USE 

The document “Permitted Development Rights for Householders: Technical 
Guidance” can be seen at this link:

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/
516238/160413_Householder_Technical_Guidance.pdf

The link below is to the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (England) Order 2015

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/596/pdfs/uksi_20150596_en.pdf 

In addition, attention is drawn to the document linked below which comprises 
the outputs of the Parish and Town Council Workshop – Development 
Management. In particular, section 3 provides general guidance on planning 
and clarity on types of proposal e.g. permitted development and prior approval 

http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/sites/default/files/sitedocuments/Planning-and-
Building-Control/Planning/parish_issues_and_responses_-
_development_management.pdf 

Question 3b  relates to the issue of “Prior Approvals” to change agricultural 
buildings to dwellings, and the answer to this specific question is set out in full 
below:

Prior Approval applications are not the subject of usual planning policy 
considerations contained within our Bath and North East Somerset Local Plan 
and Core Strategy. This is because within the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 a change of use of 
an agricultural building to a dwelling is permitted development, subject to 
certain criteria. The relevant part of the Order is schedule 2, part 3 class Q. 
There is an extensive list of things that would render a change of use not 
permitted development so the regulations need to be checked in each case. If 

Page 13

Agenda Item 9

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/516238/160413_Householder_Technical_Guidance.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/516238/160413_Householder_Technical_Guidance.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/596/pdfs/uksi_20150596_en.pdf
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/sites/default/files/sitedocuments/Planning-and-Building-Control/Planning/parish_issues_and_responses_-_development_management.pdf
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/sites/default/files/sitedocuments/Planning-and-Building-Control/Planning/parish_issues_and_responses_-_development_management.pdf
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/sites/default/files/sitedocuments/Planning-and-Building-Control/Planning/parish_issues_and_responses_-_development_management.pdf


none of the criteria apply that would make the change of use not permitted 
development then the developer must apply to the local planning authority for 
a determination as to whether the prior approval of the authority will be 
required as to - 
(a) transport and highways impacts of the development, 
(b) noise impacts of the development, 
(c) contamination risks on the site, 
(d) flooding risks on the site, 
(e) whether the location or siting of the building makes it otherwise impractical 
or undesirable for the building to change from agricultural use to a use falling 
within Class C3 (dwellinghouses) of the Schedule to the Use Classes Order, 
and 
(f) the design or external appearance of the building. 
It is a prerequisite of this type of application that the barn is currently or last 
used for agricultural purposes.

(c)  HOUSING AND PLANNING BILL: B&NES RESPONSE TO DOCUMENT 
“TECHNICAL CONSULTATION ON IMPLEMENTATION OF PLANNING 
CHANGES”. 

The response from Bath & North East Somerset Council to this document is 
attached to the agenda. This was an open public consultation and any 
questions may of course be taken at the meeting. 

(d) “DOWNLOAD ALL” OPTION - UPDATE 

In relation to this specific issue, a request for this change has been 
raised with Idox but as yet this has not been possible to implement. At 
this point we are not sure it will be possible to make this change.  We 
have again raised this with our Idox account manager and we have 
been pressing this again for reconsideration but as yet there is no 
resolution identified.

More generally with regard to electronic working, we will of course 
continue to help wherever possible and a lot of support and information 
is available on the website linked to below:

http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/services/planning-and-building-
control/planning/planning-advice-and-guidance/parish-and-town-council 

These web pages include information such as tips for viewing planning 
applications online as well as Case Studies. There is also information 
on accessing funding including the Transparency Fund for smaller 
parish councils to set up websites and purchase IT equipment.

Page 14

http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/services/planning-and-building-control/planning/planning-advice-and-guidance/parish-and-town-council
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/services/planning-and-building-control/planning/planning-advice-and-guidance/parish-and-town-council


Technical consultation response to the Government’s 
Implementation of planning changes

Chapter 1: Changes to planning application fees;

Question 1.1: Do you agree with our proposal to adjust planning fees in line with 
inflation, but only in areas where the local planning authority is performing well? If 
not what alternative would you suggest?

It is appropriate to increase planning application fees in line with inflation but this should be 
applied to all local planning authorities irrespective of their performance.  Local planning 
authorities need to be properly resourced to exercise their statutory functions and contribute 
towards economic growth. The proposed financial penalty will not improve the performance 
of under-performing LPAs; it will contribute towards a continuing lack of resources.  The 
government should be increasing the funding available to local planning authorities not 
imposing what amounts to real-term cuts.  
 
Question 1.2: Do you agree that national fee changes should not apply where a 
local planning authority is designated as under-performing, or would you propose an 
alternative means of linking fees to performance? And should there be a delay 
before any change of this type is applied?

As above, inflationary fee increases are necessary for local planning authorities to, at the 
very least, maintain existing performance levels. The continuing lack of inflationary fee 
increases will not only undermine attempts to improve performance, it could jeopardise 
existing levels of performance. 

If this system were to be introduced then there should be a delay of 12 months to allow LPAs 
which are not at the required level of performance to seek to address this.

Question 1.3: Do you agree that additional flexibility over planning application fees 
should be allowed through deals, in return for higher standards of service or radical 
proposals for reform? 

The ability to be flexible in terms of the revenue obtained through the submission of a 
planning application is already in place by means of Planning Performance Agreement 
(PPA); this is a discretionary offer however and not all applicants will choose to use it. In 
cases where LPAs are performing well there is a case for locally set fees which will allow 
LPAs to better resource themselves to deliver heightened levels of service and different 
offers of service. In most industries there is the option of choosing different packages 
depending on the individual’s needs and wishes the planning system could work in this way 
also. 

Question 1.4: Do you have a view on how any fast-track services could best 
operate, or on other options for radical service improvement?

The majority of applications nationally are dealt with within the 8 and 13 week deadlines and 
the Government already has measures in place to deal with local planning authorities which 
consistency fail to meet a certain percentage of these deadlines.  A minority of applications 

Page 15

Agenda Item 9c



do not meet the aforementioned deadlines but this is usually due unexpected or complex 
reasons and/or because the local planning authority is working proactively to resolve those 
issue.  The imposition of a fast-track service will not resolve those unexpected or complex 
reasons or enable the local planning authority and developers to resolve them more quickly.  
It will simply increase the pressure on local planning authorities to not seek to resolve 
problems and instead determine applications as submitted – which in the case of 
applications which have raised complex issues may mean refusal.  

Question 1.5: Do you have any other comments on these proposals, including the 
impact on business and other users of the system?

No further comments.

Chapter 2: Enabling planning bodies to grant permission in principle for 
housing development on sites allocated in plans or identified on brownfield 
registers, and allowing small builders to apply directly for permission in 
principle for minor development;

Question 2.1: Do you agree that the following should be qualifying documents 
capable of granting permission in principle?

a) future local plans;

b) future neighbourhood plans;

c) brownfield registers.

Local and neighbourhood plan allocations and brownfield registers could be capable of 
granting permission in principle provided that all matters relating to the principle of a certain 
development are addressed and resolved through the respective plan-making processes.   

When allocating a site for residential development in a local plan for example or including a 
site on the brownfield register, local planning authorities will need to be certain that all 
factors that could impact upon the principle of residential development on that site have 
been taken into account.  This is feasible and, if satisfactory mechanisms are in place, 
potentially acceptable but it will mean that matters such as ecology, land contamination and 
flood risk for example will need to be considered comprehensively through the plan-making 
process rather than being deferred to the planning application stage; this risks significantly 
slowing down the preparation of local and neighbourhood plans.  In respect of 
Neighbourhood Plans there is also a question of whether parishes and neighbourhoods are 
appropriately equipped and resourced to prepare such a technical document.

Question 2.2: Do you agree that permission in principle on application should be 
available to minor development?

No, the benefits of doing so are limited. The submission of an outline planning application 
will all matters reserved is no different and thus will remain the most effective way of 
establishing the principle of residential development on such sites. 
 

Page 16



Question 2.3: Do you agree that location, uses and amount of residential 
development should constitute ‘in principle matters’ that must be included in a 
permission in principle? Do you think any other matter should be included?

Location, the nature of the proposed use and the amount of development must form part of 
the permission in principle but so too must the means of access. There are many 
development sites which are in an appropriate location for a certain quantum of residential 
development but residential development is essentially unacceptable in principle due to 
serious highway problems. The current proposal could result in permission in principle being 
established for sites which cannot be pursued due to insurmountable highway issues. 

Separating technical considerations from matters of principle is not straight-forward.  It is 
proposed that location is an ‘in principle matter’ (understandably) but it is the case that 
various technical matters will need to feed into an assessment of whether the proposed 
location is acceptable in principle; such matters cannot be deferred to the ‘technical 
approval’ stage, they are intrinsically linked.  A good example of this is the flood risk 
sequential test; the outcome of this test dictates whether the location of a site is acceptable 
in principle having regard to flood risk and the availability of alternative sites.  This test 
cannot be deferred to the ‘technical approval’ stage as it forms a fundamental part of the 
assessment of whether a site’s location is acceptable in principle.  Any assessment of 
‘location’ at the permission in principle stage (whether on application or allocation) must be 
broad in scope and enable the local planning authority to assess all matters that could 
influence whether the site’s location (and use and amount) is acceptable in principle, some 
of these matters are technical.

Question 2.4: Do you have views on how best to ensure that the parameters of the 
technical details that need to be agreed are described at the permission in principle 
stage?

The government’s comments in relation to the proposed inability to impose conditions on 
permission in principles are noted but it suggested that the imposition of a condition 
prescribing the parameters of the technical details would be the most sensible and easily 
understood method.  

Question 2.5: Do you have views on our suggested approach to a) Environmental 
Impact Assessment, b) Habitats Directive or c) other sensitive sites?

The suggestions seem logical

Question 2.6: Do you agree with our proposals for community and other 
involvement?

No. It is important that local residents and the community are fully involved (if they wish to 
be) at the technical approval stage. There is no justification in not requiring the notification of 
neighbours etc. in relation to an application for technical approval.  Such an application 
should not be treated any differently to an application for the approval of reserved matters.  
Local residents’ comments are not limited to matters of principle but often relate to the detail 
of a scheme and its impact. Notifying neighbours will not duplicate engagement, as 
suggested in the consultation paper, because matters of technical detail will not have yet 
been considered.  Mandating notification/consultation ensures consistency between local 
planning authorities.  
 
Question 2.7: Do you agree with our proposals for information requirements?

Page 17



The proposed information requirements for applications for technical approval are 
reasonable but the suggested information requirements for applications for permissions in 
principle are considered to be inadequate.  As stated above the supporting information 
submitted with applications for permissions in principle must relate to all matters that may 
influence whether the development is acceptable in principle.  The example given above is 
the flood risk sequential test – this cannot be deferred to the technical approval stage 
because it relates to matters of principle; it will need to be a validation requirement.  Another 
example is ecology; the LPA will need to establish at the permission in principle stage 
whether there are European protected species on site.  The three derogation tests (the first 
two at least – IROPI and satisfactory alternatives) are matters of principle which cannot be 
deferred to the technical approval stage. The LPA will need a full ecological 
survey/assessment to undertake this assessment.

Question 2.8: Do you have any views about the fee that should be set for a) a 
permission in principle application and b) a technical details consent application?

The gross fee across the two applications should be comparable to an equivalent full 
planning application to ensure that there are adequate resources to deal with the proposal 
efficiently.  This could be split 50/50 between permission in principle and the technical 
approval stage or it could be proportionate to the level work involved – which would need to 
be calculated.

The government should avoid setting permission in principle fees at a level that is 
disproportionately low compared to the level of work involved as this will encourage 
speculative applications and applications which will not necessarily be followed by 
subsequent applications for technical approval; in such situations the LPA would be unable 
to recover the remainder of the fee.

Question 2.9: Do you agree with our proposals for the expiry of on permission in 
principle on allocation and application? Do you have any views about whether we 
should allow for local variation to the duration of permission in principle?

Yes agree.

Question 2.10: Do you agree with our proposals for the maximum determination 
periods for a) permission in principle minor applications, and b) technical details 
consent for minor and major sites?

A 5 week determination period is only sufficient time if an application is acceptable as 
submitted (i.e. without revisions) and determined under delegated powers.  If the scheme 
needs to be amended to make it acceptable then this timescale will not allow for it. Likewise 
it would exclude local members from the decision-making process on major developments.  

Experience has shown that 10 weeks is very rarely sufficient time in which to process a 
major planning application. A major technical approval application will be no different; it will 
only be marginally less complicated than a full planning application (all matters will still be 
relevant except the principle) and it will be considerably more complicated than a major 
reserved matters applications (potential S.106 Agreement etc.)

Page 18



Chapter 3: Introducing a statutory register of brownfield land suitable for 
housing development;

Question 3.1: Do you agree with our proposals for identifying potential sites? Are 
there other sources of information that we should highlight?

This seems sensible 

Question 3.2: Do you agree with our proposed criteria for assessing suitable sites? 
Are there other factors which you think should be considered?

Yes provided that the Local Plan is relevant to a local planning authority’s consideration of 
whether a brownfield site is capable of development and thus to be included on the register.  
This is implied in the consultation but is not explicit in the bulleted points. 

Question 3.3: Do you have any views on our suggested approach for addressing 
the requirements of Environmental Impact Assessment and Habitats Directives?

The consultation suggests that the local planning authority will be responsible for 
undertaking an EIA in relation to each site (where it has been concluded that an EIA is 
necessary) prior to its inclusion on the brownfield register.  This is a significant and resource 
intensive piece of work.  The responsibility to commission an EIA currently rests with an 
applicant for planning permission, there is no justification in moving away from this.  The 
responsibility to prepare an EIA should rest with the landowner/promoter of the site and the 
Environmental Statement should be submitted to the Council as part of the brownfield 
register process.

Question 3.4: Do you agree with our views on the application of the Strategic 
Environment Assessment Directive? Could the Department provide assistance in 
order to make any applicable requirements easier to meet?

No comment

Question 3.5: Do you agree with our proposals on publicity and consultation 
requirements?

Yes

Question 3.6: Do you agree with the specific information we are proposing to 
require for each site?

The specified required information is logical but caution is urged in respect of the 
requirement to provide an estimate of the number of homes.  The capacity of a site depends 
upon a range of factors which may not be available at the time that the brownfield register is 
adopted, and/or may change.  Factors include the height (no. of storeys) of buildings, 
amount of public open space and car parking provision. The number of dwellings a site can 
accommodate is best led by the design process, having regard to the site’s constraints and 
opportunities. If the further information required can be incorporated into the permission in 
principle requirements then it would be essential to have a maximum figure for housing 
which can be delivered on site.

Page 19



Question 3.7: Do you have any suggestions about how the data could be 
standardised and published in a transparent manner?

The brownfield register should be published on LPA websites as a layer on the 
online GIS systems that most local authorities already use.

Question 3.8: Do you agree with our proposed approach for keeping data up-to-
date?

An annual review by the local planning authority seems sensible.

Question 3.9: Do our proposals to drive progress provide a strong enough incentive 
to ensure the most effective use of local brownfield registers and permission in 
principle?

Requiring 90% of sites entered on the brownfield register to have planning permission 
(which includes permission in principle) by 2020 is unrealistic.  It is reasonable to require 
90% of sites to come forward within a reasonable time period but this must be measured 
from the date the brownfield register is adopted; not an arbitrary date.  It is only reasonable 
provided that local planning authorities have control over which sites are and are not entered 
on the register.  LPA’s should not be penalised if this target is unachievable through no fault 
of their own, for example if certain sites stall due to peculiar difficulties or complexities or the 
land owner chooses not to develop the site.  This system is likely to result in the more 
complex sites being excluded from the register.

Taking the measure from permission in principle (ie when a site is entered on the register) is 
unreasonable however. It ought to be from when technical approval is granted. This is for 2 
reasons, a) complex sites may fail at this stage thus would need to be removed from the 
register, b) because the onus is with the owner to bring forward the technical application 
(which could be complex and expensive) the LPA would have no control of this. The only 
way to assist would be to have grant funding available for the LPA to call on for use to 
subsidise the technical reports needed.  Even this will not guarantee the owner will ever 
bring the site to completion.

Question 3.10: Are there further specific measures we should consider where local 
authorities fail to make sufficient progress, both in advance of 2020 and thereafter?

This consultation fails to recognise that a failure to deliver a planning permission within a 
prescribed timescale is not always the fault of the local planning authority and therefore 
penalising LPAs is unlikely to result in an increase in performance. 

Chapter 4: Creating a small sites register to support custom build homes;

Question 4.1: Do you agree that for the small sites register, small sites should be 
between one and four plots in size?

Yes

Page 20



Question 4.2: Do you agree that sites should just be entered on the small sites 
register when a local authority is aware of them without any need for a suitability 
assessment?

No – there needs to be an assessment process which all prospective sites are considered 
against. The purpose of holding a register of small sites, a significant proportion of which 
may not be suitable for housing development, would seem of little value and will be very 
confusing to those not familiar with the planning system. This would also raise the 
expectations of landowners without any assessment having taken place of the acceptability 
of the land. Likewise it could create unnecessary concern with neighbours to such sites.

Question 4.3: Are there any categories of land which we should automatically 
exclude from the register? If so what are they?

If the suitability of a site is a factor when considering whether to include a site then that 
assessment will need to be much broader than simply excluding certain types of land from 
the register. Either the site’s suitability (in planning terms) is relevant or it is not, it cannot 
ambiguously fall between the two. 

Question 4.4: Do you agree that location, size and contact details will be sufficient 
to make the small sites register useful? If not what additional information should be 
required?

Yes

Chapter 5: Speeding up and simplifying neighbourhood planning and giving 
more powers to neighbourhood forums;

Question 5.1: Do you support our proposals for the circumstances in which a local 
planning authority must designate all of the neighbourhood area applied for?

No comments

Question 5.2: Do you agree with the proposed time periods for a local planning 
authority to designate a neighbourhood forum?

No comments

Question 5.3: Do you agree with the proposed time period for the local planning 
authority to decide whether to send a plan or Order to referendum?

No comments

Question 5.4: Do you agree with the suggested persons to be notified and invited to 
make representations when a local planning authority’s proposed decision differs 
from the recommendation of the examiner?

Page 21



No comments

Question 5.5: Do you agree with the proposed time periods where a local planning 
authority seeks further representations and makes a final decision?

No comments

Question 5.6: Do you agree with the proposed time period within which a 
referendum must be held?

No comments

Question 5.7: Do you agree with the time period by which a neighbourhood plan or 
Order should be made following a successful referendum?

No comments

Question 5.8: What other measures could speed up or simplify the neighbourhood 
planning process?

No comments

Question 5.9: Do you agree with the proposed procedure to be followed where the 
Secretary of State may intervene to decide whether a neighbourhood plan or Order 
should be put to a referendum?

No comments

Question 5.10: Do you agree that local planning authorities must notify and invite 
representations from designated neighbourhood forums where they consider they 
may have an interest in the preparation of a local plan?

No comments

Chapter 6: Introducing criteria to inform decisions on intervention to deliver 
our commitment to get local plans in place;

Question 6.1: Do you agree with our proposed criteria for prioritising intervention in 
local plans?

No comments

Question 6.2: Do you agree that decisions on prioritising intervention to arrange for 
a local plan to be written should take into consideration a) collaborative and strategic 
plan-making and b) neighbourhood planning?

No comments

Question 6.3: Are there any other factors that you think the government should take 
into consideration?

Page 22



No comments

Question 6.4: Do you agree that the Secretary of State should take exceptional 
circumstances submitted by local planning authorities into account when considering 
intervention?

No comments

Question 6.5: Is there any other information you think we should publish alongside 
what is stated above?

No comments

Question 6.6: Do you agree that the proposed information should be published on a 
six monthly basis?

No comments

Chapter 7: Extending the existing designation approach to include 
applications for non-major development;

Question 7.1: Do you agree that the threshold for designations involving 
applications for non-major development should be set initially at between 60-70% of 
decisions made on time, and between 10-20% of decisions overturned at appeal? If 
so what specific thresholds would you suggest?

No. The existing thresholds were considered to be an appropriate reflection of what 
constitutes an acceptable level of performance and the need to alter them is unfounded. 
Raising the target to 70% could lead to LPAs who have been exceeding previously required 
performance level e.g. 65% on minor applications being designated for poor performance. 
This will lead to the majority of LPAs being designated for poor performance. 
 
Question 7.2: Do you agree that the threshold for designations based on the quality 
of decisions on applications for major development should be reduced to 10% of 
decisions overturned at appeal?

Yes

Question 7.3: Do you agree with our proposed approach to designation and de-
designation, and in particular

(a) that the general approach should be the same for applications involving major 
and non-major development?

(b) performance in handling applications for major and non-major development 
should be assessed separately?

(c) in considering exceptional circumstances, we should take into account the extent 
to which any appeals involve decisions which authorities considered to be in line with 

Page 23



an up-to-date plan, prior to confirming any designations based on the quality of 
decisions?

Yes this is supported.  It is sensible for the approach to be consistent. 

Question 7.4: Do you agree that the option to apply directly to the Secretary of State 
should not apply to applications for householder developments?

Agreed

Chapter 8: Testing competition in the processing of planning applications;

Question 8.1: Who should be able to compete for the processing of planning 
applications and which applications could they compete for?

Who should be able to compete?

The process of assessing planning applications and providing a recommendation can 
involve a complex process of bringing together a variety of expertise and specialisms. It is 
therefore essential that processing of planning applications is undertaken by suitably trained 
and qualified planners. 

In terms of organisations, only those with sufficient access to the relevant expertise and 
specialisms in the many areas the planning process considers (planning, ecological, 
arboriculture, landscape, highways, drainage, etc.) will be able to provide rigorous and 
thorough recommendations to LPAs. This clearly suggests that multi-disciplinary 
organisations would be in a better position to compete for the processing of planning 
applications. For organisations that are not multi-disciplinary, they will to have to have 
access to these expertise and specialisms in order to formulate recommendations. This 
could be achieved by buying these services in from other private providers. 

Most problematic would be the potential conflicts of interest arising from approved providers 
who are also involved in promoting planning applications for development in the same local 
authority districts in which they are acting as approved providers. Obviously, the regulations 
would need to bar approved providers from making recommendations on their own planning 
applications, but this may not go far enough to remove the potential for and perception of 
conflicts of interests occurring. 

High performing LPAs make the ideal candidates for acting as alternative providers in other 
local authority areas, as they already have experience of, and are set up to deal with, all 
types of planning applications and have in place the relevant expertise and access to 
specialist advice.

Types of applications

Presumably the approved providers would not be compelled under the new statutory regime 
to process all applications they receive, i.e. they are not under a duty to determine 
applications received like the LPA is. This introduces the very really possibility that approved 
providers will ‘cherry pick’ the most valuable (in terms of fee income) applications and refuse 
to deal with the least valuable. The current fees structure means that fee income for certain 

Page 24



types of applications is greater than the cost of processing them and that for other types of 
application it is less than the cost of processing them. For example, benchmarking exercises 
undertaken by the Planning Advisory Service (PAS) demonstrated that the fee income from 
dealing with discharge of conditions applications and householder developments do not 
cover the costs of dealing with them. It is highly likely that private companies acting as 
alternative providers will only take on those applications which they deem to be the most 
profitable. This could have the effect of removing resources from LPA whilst leaving them to 
deal with the most timely, complicated and costly of applications.

It would therefore be necessary to consider making it a requirement that each alternative 
provider must deal with any application which is lodged with them. Failure to do this would 
result in an un-level playing field with LPAs at a competitive disadvantage. It would likewise 
be critical to the success of the system that all providers were able to charge the same rates 
to deal with applications.  

This new system would make it confusing for members of the public as to who is dealing 
with individual applications. Alternative providers may be unwilling to respond to third party 
queries which will not be fee generating.

Question 8.2: How should fee setting in competition test areas operate?

Fee setting needs to be done on an equitable basis with each provider potentially able to 
charge the same amount. This would mean introducing local fee setting in the test area. 
Allowing the setting of fees to cover costs would be welcomed as planning application fees 
have not risen in line with inflation for a number of years and there are a number of 
applications fees which do not currently cover the costs of dealing with them.

Consideration needs to be given to the work involved for LPAs reviewing recommendations 
and taking decisions (particularly where these are taken by a planning committee). This 
could potentially involve a considerable amount of work if they disagree with the 
recommendation taken or if the quality of the report is poor. There will also likely be costs to 
LPA from keeping the planning register up-to-date and taking enquiries from members of the 
public about planning applications. The proportion of the fee to be given to the LPA should 
take account of these factors.

Question 8.3: What should applicants, approved providers and local planning 
authorities in test areas be able to do?

The test needs to run as the new system is proposed to operate. Alternative providers need 
to demonstrate how they will deal with applications from registration to making a 
recommendation to the LPA.

Approved providers will need to undertake site visits, they will not benefit from the powers 
afforded to local government officers to enter private land there will need to be a change in 
legislation to allow alternative providers a right of access.

If an LPA receives a report and recommendation from an approved provider it will need time 
to assess and review the report to determine its quality and that it covers all the relevant 
issues. It is difficult to see how some element of duplication will not occur at this stage as the 
LPA will either have to take the report on trust (which would not safeguard the integrity of the 
system) or make its own judgement upon parts of the report which it might have reason to 
query. This is particularly pertinent if the LPA rejects the recommendation of the report as, 
presumably, it will need to prepare its own report outlining the reasons for the alternative 

Page 25



recommendation. The timeframes afforded to LPAs to take decisions on reports from 
approved providers will need to take this into account.

If an application is required to be determined by committee rather than at delegated level, 
the usual committee cycles of a Council will need to be taken into account when considering 
what timeframe to set LPAs for taking a decision. This needs to account for the time required 
to prepare papers for committees and allowing the publication of the report in advance of 
any meeting.

It is important that the regulations do not set any unfair restrictions or penalties upon the LPA 
if they need to disagree with a recommendation from an approved provider. As the ultimate 
decision maker, they are also democratically accountable and clarity will be needed about 
how alternative providers will be accountable for their recommendations to third parties.

Question 8.4: Do you have a view on how we could maintain appropriate high 
standards and performance during the testing of competition?

Monitor performance of approved providers and LPAs against timescale targets.
Monitor the types of applications been taken on by approved providers.
Introduce a measure of quality of decision making (beyond appeal performance) by having a 
robust review mechanism in the test areas of recommendations.
Monitor the impacts upon the setting of fee levels and the fee incomes of LPAs.

Question 8.5: What information would need to be shared between approved 
providers and local planning authorities, and what safeguards are needed to protect 
information?

The planning history of a site, access to GIS mapping showing the relevant site constraints, 
and copies of any pre-application enquiry and the LPA’s response. 

There will be a cost associated with the provision of information from LPAs to approved 
providers. For example, planning histories are not always readily available in an easily 
accessible format and require detailed history searches to be undertaken by LPA staff. This 
is particularly the case where unitary authorities out of multiple historic local authorities each 
with their own system of record keeping. Approved providers may need to pay to receive this 
information from LPAs.

The LPA is responsible for maintaining the planning register and display information on 
planning applications on their websites (plans/drawings/background 
information/correspondence/etc.) available for public viewing and comment. Approved 
providers will need to provide the LPA with details of any planning applications they receive 
so that these details can be published on their website. This should include copies of the 
plans and all other information submitted with the application so that it can be subject to 
public scrutiny and comment. Approved providers will need to provide this information in a 
standardised electronic format.

If the intention is that approved providers will publish application details on their own 
websites, then this is likely to lead to fragmentation and confusion about where members of 
the public can access information about planning applications. A central place for all 
applications to be viewed would therefore need to be setup.

This system will potentially require a number of hand-offs between separate bodies and 
there is a real concern that this will slow down the process leading to delays as an 
unintended consequence. 

Page 26



Question 8.6: Do you have any other comments on these proposals, including the 
impact on business and other users of the system?

There are significant concerns about the impacts upon the consistency of planning 
recommendations coming forward. All planning applications require a number of value 
judgements to be made and currently LPA (as the sole provider of decisions) ensure that 
there is a degree of consistency and, therefore, certainty in planning decisions. There is 
concern that by introducing a range of approved providers to make recommendations there 
will be no way of ensuring a consistent approach. This will increase uncertainty for business 
and users of the planning system who will not know whether an approved provider’s 
recommendation is going to be upheld by the LPA. There would also be a significant cost to 
the LPA in terms of undertaking the checking process and explaining the decision to third 
parties.

There is also a concern about the impact of the proposals upon the public perception of 
planning. Whilst some safeguards may be put in place, the perception of a private company 
which may be promoting development in other areas, but is processing and making 
recommendations on applications in another may undermine the confidence in the system. 
Lack of confidence in the planning system would likely lead to greater anti-development 
sentiment and be counter-productive in terms of the aims of these proposals.

Planning decisions are taken in the public interest. There is concern about how private 
alternative providers can be made to consistently make recommendations in the public 
interest where they are essentially a private company seeking to make a financial return.
There are concerns about whether alternative providers will be subject to Freedom of 
Information (FOI) requests and about the probity and transparency of how recommendations 
have been formulated and what negotiations with developers have been undertaken.

Chapter 9: Information about financial benefits;

Question 9.1: Do you agree with these proposals for the range of benefits to be 
listed in planning reports?

‘Local finance considerations’ as defined in the act are a material consideration and 
therefore should be included within planning reports to committee. 
It is important to note that items such as CIL, council tax revenue or business rate revenue 
are financial ‘implications’ of a planning decisions and do not necessary equate to a ‘benefit’ 
of the scheme. All of these items are designed to cover the costs of servicing the 
development or offsetting its impact so should not be automatically taken as benefits. This 
requirement would need to be extended to include alternative providers within the duty.
It is essential that the weight to be afforded to these issues remains a matter solely for the 
decision maker. Any new legislation should not alter this position.

Question 9.2: Do you agree with these proposals for the information to be recorded, 
and are there any other matters that we should consider when preparing regulations 
to implement this measure?

There is also concern that a requirement to calculate estimated council tax or business rates 
will add delay to the planning process whilst this is calculated by the LPA.

Page 27



Financial payments to other bodies should only be listed in a planning report if they are 
material to the planning decision. 

Chapter 10: Introducing a Section 106 dispute resolution service;

Question 10.1: Do you agree that the dispute resolution procedure should be able to 
apply to any planning application?

Yes

Question 10.2: Do you agree with the proposals about when a request for dispute 
resolution can be made?

The proposals set out reasonable time limits before the dispute resolution process can be 
triggered.

Question 10.3: Do you agree with the proposals about what should be contained in 
a request?

There is a potential conflict between these proposals and proposals for the reporting of 
financial benefits to committee. In some cases, the only way to determine whether the LPA 
are likely to grant planning permission if satisfactory planning obligations were entered into 
would be if the application has a resolution to grant permission from a planning committee. 
However, if there is a requirement to report all financial benefits (including S106 payments) 
to committee it will not be possible to do this until after the dispute resolution service has 
reported back. This may result in applications having to be reported to committee twice 
causing additional delay. 

Question 10.4: Do you consider that another party to the section 106 agreement 
should be able to refer the matter for dispute resolution? If yes, should this be with 
the agreement of both the main parties?

No – the main parties to the agreement should be the only ones able to refer the matter for 
dispute resolution. Otherwise this may encourage other parties to cause unnecessary delay 
or use this option as a potential bargaining chip or ransom to influence the agreement.

Question 10.5: Do you agree that two weeks would be sufficient for the cooling off 
period?

Yes – this is a reasonable approach which will allow some time for final agreement to be 
reached.
Question 10.6: What qualifications and experience do you consider the appointed 
person should have to enable them to be credible?

S106 negotiations require an understanding of both the planning and legal professions. It 
would therefore be appropriate for the appointed person to have experience of both, i.e. 
RTPI qualified planner, legal qualification. Some understanding or training in development 
viability would also be beneficial. The level of qualification will need to be sufficient to 
command the confidence of both the LPA and the applicant. The Planning Inspectorate are 

Page 28



regularly arbitrating in these matters and would seem a logical choice to arbitrate over these 
disagreements. 

Question 10.7: Do you agree with the proposals for sharing fees? If not, what 
alternative arrangement would you support?

Disagree with the proposals for fee sharing. The fee should be borne by the applicant or by 
the party requesting the use of the S106 dispute resolution service. Otherwise this could 
lead to serious resource implications for LPAs should the new service prove popular. The 
LPA will also be put to cost in engaging with the new dispute resolution service and this 
impact should not be compounded by a requirement to contribute towards any fees, 
particularly if it has acted reasonably in its S106 negotiations.

Question 10.8: Do you have any comments on how long the appointed person 
should have to produce their report?

4 weeks is not an unreasonable time limit for producing a report. This service will need to be 
adequately resourced so that these time limits can be met. 

However, consideration needs to be given to whether this period will take application over 
the planning guarantee deadline (i.e. refund of fees). The regulations should include 
safeguards to ensure that when a matter is taken to the dispute resolution service at the 
request of the applicant that this does not count towards the planning guarantee deadline.

Question 10.9: What matters do you think should and should not be taken into 
account by the appointed person?

The dispute resolution service should focus on the main issues in dispute, but should also 
consider any other relevant material considerations which may influence the terms of the 
S106.

Question 10.10: Do you agree that the appointed person’s report should be 
published on the local authority’s website? Do you agree that there should be a 
mechanism for errors in the appointed person’s report to be corrected by request?

Yes – publication of the report on the LPA website will ensure that there is transparency. 

Yes – A simple mechanism for correcting simple errors in a report would be a useful tool to 
avoid delay. There needs to be some system of redress should the report contain major 
error which require it to reassessed completely.

Question 10.11: Do you have any comments about how long there should be 
following the dispute resolution process for a) completing any section 106 obligations 
and b) determining the planning application?

Having a time limit on the completion of a S106 once a report is received will help to move 
an application to a conclusion. However, this should not be drawn too tightly as S106 
agreements often involve multiple parties and there can be delays in getting all parties to 
enter the agreement. The consequences of not entering an agreement in a prescribed 
deadline should therefore not be overly harsh (i.e. refusal of planning permission) as this 

Page 29



would seem counter-productive in instances where all parties are in agreement following the 
publication of the report.

Question 10.12: Are there any cases or circumstances where the consequences of 
the report, as set out in the Bill, should not apply?

No

Question 10.13: What limitations do you consider appropriate, following the 
publication of the appointed person’s report, to restrict the use of other obligations?

Existing planning legislation provides sufficient restrictions on the use of other obligations.

Question 10.14: Are there any other steps that you consider that parties should be 
required to take in connection with the appointed person’s report and are there any 
other matters that we should consider when preparing regulations to implement the 
dispute resolution process?

No

Chapter 11: Facilitating delivery of new state-funded school places, including 
free schools, through expanded permitted development rights; 

Question 11.1: Do you have any views on our proposals to extend permitted 
development rights for state-funded schools, or whether other changes should be 
made? For example, should changes be made to the thresholds within which school 
buildings can be extended?

Extending temporary rights to use any property as a state-funded school from 1 year to 2 
years will allow more time for new schools to find and establish permanent premise 
elsewhere. However, a downside to this is that the longer the premise is in use the less likely 
it is to return to its former use when the school move to their permanent premises.

Increased the thresholds for extensions to schools will increase flexibility for schools, 
although a large number of school will already have exceeded the 25% of the gross 
floorspace threshold). In practice this will only have a limited affect. 
There is potential to relax the 5m restriction on building within the boundary, but this should 
possibly include a height restriction, such as no building higher than 3m (similar to part 1 
dwellinghouse extension PD rights).

However, the relaxation and increase in thresholds need to careful consider how impacts of 
school expansion, e.g. increased pupil numbers, highways impacts, etc., will be managed.

There is concern about the proposal to allow the erection of temporary buildings on cleared 
sites which would have benefited from permanent change of use rights. It is unclear whether 
this proposed right will include permission to demolish an existing building or, if not, how a 
‘cleared site’ will be defined. It will be difficult for the LPA to establish what the authorised 

Page 30



use of the building previously on the site was if it has already been demolished by the time 
this PD right is implemented.

There is particular concern in respect of temporary buildings being erected on cleared sites 
which would have benefited for a change of use to a state-funded school under Part 3, Class 
S (agricultural building to state-funded school). This is because agricultural buildings are 
usually positioned in isolated locations in the countryside. The erection of temporary (likely 
modular) classrooms or other school buildings in these locations is likely to harm the rural 
character of an area.

Question 11.2: Do you consider that the existing prior approval provisions are 
adequate? Do you consider that other local impacts arise which should be 
considered in designing the right?

The existing prior approval provisions are considered to cover the main issues which need to 
be considered. However, issues of design and landscaping would need to be assessed 
when considering a new PD right for temporary buildings if these are in rural locations.

Chapter 12: Improving the performance of all statutory consultees.

Question 12.1: What are the benefits and/or risks of setting a maximum period that 
a statutory consultee can request when seeking an extension of time to respond with 
comments to a planning application?

This will allow for greater certainty for applicants and LPA when processing applications. 
However, safeguards need to be built into the regulations for where the statutory consultees 
have requested and/or are awaiting additional information from applicants. In these cases, 
the time limit should start from when the additional information is received.

Third parties do need time to review proposals. Town and Parish Councils often do not meet 
that regularly so this could make engagement with the community more difficult. 

Question 12.2: Where an extension of time to respond is requested by a statutory 
consultee, what do you consider should be the maximum additional time allowed? 
Please provide details.

An additional 14 days appears to be a reasonable period to enable consideration of complex 
applications or to enable the assessment of revised or additional information received. 
However, some option for a statutory consultee to agree a bespoke timetable with the LPA 
would be useful in very complicated cases. The LPA should not be held accountable in 
terms of performance if the consultee fails to adhere to the time limit.

Chapters 1-12 are structured to allow respondents to comment on consultation 
proposals which are most relevant to them. We are also seeking views on 
whether proposals impact on protected groups as described in chapter 13, to 
ensure that we take into account all relevant evidence in our consideration.

Page 31



Question 13.1: Do you have any views about the implications of our proposed 
changes on people with protected characteristics as defined in the Equalities Act 
2010? What evidence do you have on this matter? Is there anything that could be 
done to mitigate any impact identified?

There is a risk that those people affected by developments will not have the right to 
comment on the technical details of what is being proposed which goes against the 
push for localism. Likewise there are a number of complicated changes to the 
system being proposed which may make the planning system less accessible to third 
parties. 

Question 13.2: Do you have any other suggestions or comments on the proposals 
set out in this consultation document?

No

Page 32



Parish Liaison Meeting – 11th May 2016

Parish Clerks’ Working Group- Update

Background

A series of workshops was held in July 2015 for the Bathavon, Chew Valley, 
Keynsham and Somer Valley Connecting Communities Forums.  The aim of these 
was to help the Forums consider different ways of working together, gain a better 
understanding of what partners can offer, and review the influence and effectiveness 
of the Forums.  The outcomes of the workshops have now been developed into a 
series of Action Plans.

One priority that required discussion across the whole area was the need to help 
parish clerks carry out parish and town council elected members’ decisions more 
effectively through improving communications and sharing knowledge. A number of 
Parish Clerks expressed an interest in being involved in a discussion on this and a 
working group was set up to explore further.  The working group currently comprises 
clerks from the parishes of: Clutton, Compton Martin, Dunkerton, Midsomer Norton, 
Paulton, Peasedown St John, Radstock and Timsbury.

Following its first meeting, in October 2015, the working party undertook a survey of 
all town and parish clerks in Bath and North East Somerset.  The aim was to better 
understand their needs and identify practical solutions to enable us to work better 
together.  The survey was divided into six main parts: roles and responsibilities, 
meetings, communications, equipment, training needs, and membership.  The 
survey ran from October 2015 to February 2016. 48 parishes responded to the 
survey.  

Progress
As a result of the survey a number of actions are being followed up, including:

 Better understanding of roles, responsibilities and processes of town 
and parish councils. A dedicated intranet page for Bath & North East 
Somerset Council staff has been set up, explaining the roles and 
responsibilities of town and parish councils and setting out information such 
as: when parish councils hold their meetings; contacts for parish newsletters; 
information about the Parish Charter. In addition, the Bath & North 
East Somerset Council staff induction programme now includes more 
information about parish and town councils. 

 Improved communications. As identified elsewhere on this agenda, we are 
developing a dedicated on-line group to help share information and to 
encourage more collaboration between clerks.

 Equipment –  In response to the survey, we will be looking at ways to help 
parish councils share equipment and resources.  Clerks also wanted to know 
more about the ‘Transparency Grant’ scheme.

 Training needs – We are offering a series of training and briefing sessions to 
keep parish and town councillors and clerks up-to-date on a range of issues.  
We are also organising a series of IT training and directing them to existing 

Page 33

Agenda Item 10



courses on topics such as health and safety and safeguarding, In formation 
on this is set out in the Appendix.

 Membership - The survey included information about membership of the 
Avon Local Council Association (ALCA) and Society of Local Council Clerks 
(SLCC) and the results have been shared with both organisations.  

A number of other useful suggestions and requests were made, including:
 Informing parishes about the paid services or equipment hire offered by Bath 

& North East Somerset Council
 Provision of mentoring for  parish clerks

Next Steps
The Parish Clerks Working Group will meet again on the 14th July to review 
progress. Any other Parish Clerks wishing to be part of the working group are 
welcome to be involved.

Sara Dixon
Acting Stronger Communities Manager
Bath & North East Somerset Council

Page 34



APPENDIX -  Training and Briefings for Parish Clerks and Parish Councillors

NOTE: The Council will part-fund IT courses to ensure affordability, with a small 
charge of £30 per delegate, per course (IT courses only).

Name Description of course
Basic introduction to 
Microsoft Word 2010

Making a start with Word, use of the ribbons, quick access toolbar, 
saving, pdfs, new documents, page layout, using & customising 
spell checker and thesaurus, using the quick format bar (right click 
menu), bulletin, inserting screen shots, using undo & redo.

Intermediate to 
Microsoft Word 2010

Navigation through document, using table of contents, context, 
sensitive menus - using tables and drawings, formatting types, 
backstage view, switching views.

Basic introduction to 
Microsoft Excel 2010

Making a start with excel, use of the ribbons, quick access toolbar, 
using paste, creating a spreadsheet format cells, using fill handle, 
understanding formulas, sorting data.

Basic intermediate to 
Microsoft Excel 2010

Handy hints, tips and shortcuts, context sensitive menus, using 
conditional logic, conditional formatting, using lookup data, dates, 
backstage view.

Microsoft Outlook 2010 Finding you way around, creating messages, reading and replying, 
signatures, calendars, contacts, links v attachments, out of office

Microsoft Powerpoint 
2010

Creating a presentation, understand the slide types and add slides 
to a presentation, format slides and add layouts, Use drawings, 
images and tables in a presentation, use SmartArt, Create and 
alter slide masters, run a slide show including animation, add 
speaker notes, Produce hand-outs and printout slides, learn some 
tips on best practise for presentations

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Equalities and the role of Town and Parish Councils - the presentation will 
include an overview of the Equalities Act and the public sector's equalities duty.  The 
presentation will also share best practice, discuss different scenarios, challenging 
behaviour and support for parish councils.  Delegates will have a better 
understanding of their role within the legislative content. 

Fee: None

Suitable for: Parish Clerks and Parish Councillors

Date and time: 

 13th July, from 5pm - 6.30pm, Council Chamber, The Hollies, Midsomer Norton.  
 1st September, from 7pm - 8.30pm, Community Space, Civic Centre, Market 

Walk, Keynsham

The session will last 1.5 hours.

Briefing by: Louise Murphy, Corporate Equalities & Diversity Officer

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Page 35



An Overview of Parking Services - the presentation will include an overview of 
parking services, parking enforcement, parking permits, blue badge schemes.

Fee: None

Suitable for: Councillors, Parish Clerks and Parish Councillors

Date and time: Wednesday 25th May 2016, 5pm until 6pm

Venue: Council Chambers, The Hollies, Midsomer Norton, BA3 2DP

Briefing by: Craig Vale, Business Support Officer

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

A Masterclass in Research and Intelligence - This workshop will look at how to 
get the most out of local data, including the census and the council's information.  It 
will look at how to create, find and analyse data; how to use that data to inform 
neighbourhood plans, help make funding bids more convincing and create a good 
evidence base for local prioritisation.  

Fee: None

Suitable for: Councillors, Parish Clerks and Parish Councillors

Date, time venue: 

 18th July, 4pm - 5pm  Conference Room, First Floor, Civic Centre, Market Walk, 
Keynsham or 

 27th October, 7pm - 8pm, Community Space, Civic Centre, Market Walk 
Keynsham

The sessions will last 1.5 hours

Briefing by: Jon Poole, David Singleton, Natalia Urry, B&NES Research and 
Intelligence Team

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

A Masterclass in District On-line - the session will include an overview of parking 
services, parking enforcement, parking permits, blue badge schemes.

Fee: None

Suitable for: Parish Clerks and Parish Councillors

Date and time: 22nd September, 6pm – 8pm

Venue: Keynsham Community Space, Civic Centre, Market Walk Keynsham

Session by: Martin Laker, Systems and GIS Team Leader

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

To book on any of the above training or briefing sessions, contact: Sara Dixon, 
Acting Stronger Communities Manager, Bath & North East Somerset Council, email: 
sara_dixon@bathnes.gov.uk tel: 01225 396594.

Page 36

mailto:sara_dixon@bathnes.gov.uk

	Agenda
	5 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	9 PLANNING UPDATE
	9c Housing and Planning Bill: B&NES response to consultation on Technical Implementation of Planning Changes
	10 PARISH CLERKS WORKING GROUP

